COP-2
. . #4
Earth Negotiations Bullet
. A R.er;or.tin.g :Se.rvi.ce. f(;r I.En;/ir.on.m.en.t a.nd. D.ev.elz)p.mén'; I\Ileg.ot.iat.io;ls.

Vol. 4 No.120  Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)  Thursday, 3 December 1998

CCD COP-2 HIGHLIGHTS ners and regional and interest groups, including BRAZIL,

WEDNESDAY, 2 DECEMBER 1998 JORDAN, TUNISIA, INDIA, TOGO, ANTIGUA and

Delegates to CCD COP-2 met in the COW and the CST duriBARBUDA’ MOROCCO, CUBA, PANAMA, IRAN, MALL,

morning and afternoon sessions. The COW discussed agenda gz o, specific national, regional and sub-regional programmes.
related to Rules of Procedure and review implementation of the . . . L2 )
Convention. The CST focused on traditional knowledge and . The G-77/CHINA said experiences in the interim phase high-
: : ; light issues to be elaborated, including the need to: streamline the
possible follow-up actions in the CST. . X 7
strategic planning framework for affected country Parties; coop-
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE erate more closely between multilateral agencies and donors at the
The COW postponed its review of the Global Mechanism  country level; channel resources directly to the local level; and
report and discussed Rules of Procedure (ROP) 22 (1) and 31 structure the level of financial support that may be expected by an
(composition of the Bureau) and 47 (1) (majority voting absent affected country over a programme'’s life-cycle. ALGERIA called
consensus). Executive Secretary Diallo noted that COP-1 adopfetithe equitable distribution of meetings organized by the Secre-
the ROP subject to bracketed text in Rules 22, 31 and 47. tariat, and with GERMANY called for the timely delivery of their
Regarding the composition of the Bureau, INDONESIA, on records. The EU underlined the importance of the Convention in
behalf of the G-77/CHINA, said Parties should pay particular attfe: context of sustainable development and underscored the impor
tion to equitable geographic distribution and adequate represeni@?ace of National Action Programmes (NAPs) and the institutional
tion of affected country Parties, particularly those in Africa, and framework in which they are set. HONDURAS, PANAMA, HAITI
favored removing the reference to the implementation Annexesand PERU urged enhanced support for implementation
CANADA, on behalf of JUSCANZ, said the ROP currently programmes and institutional strengthening in the aftermath of
provide for such representation and additional language would Hurricane Mitch. The AFRICAN GROUP noted the commitment
introduce rigidity and complicate elections. He said Rules 22 (1Pf the Organization of African Unity (OAU) to implementation of
and 31 currently mirror and should remain consistent with CCDthe Convention and said interregional activities foster and
Article 22 (6). He added that the Annexes do not correspond witsfrengthen cooperation between developing countries.
those of the UN system and could complicate elections. SPAIN saidVALI detailed the components of its NAP and stressed the
it did not intend to part from the UN groupings, but adding a refepeed for the Secretariat to document problems experienced and
ence to Annex countries was logical given the structure of the Cla®v to overcome them in its review report. SENEGAL highlighted
since they have assumed special obligations under the Conventighimportance of participatory approaches in the development of
Regarding Rule 47 (1), MAURITANIA, on behalf of the G-77/NAPs and said the process needs to be supported by information
CHINA, said that, absent consensus, to which Parties should from all actors.
always strive, a simple majority vote and not a two-thirds majority CANADA and JAPAN commended the implementation efforts
vote should be permitted. JUSCANZ said consensus on key  of the affected countries and called on the Secretariat to provide
matters, particularly financial, is the best guarantee of the COP’sore comprehensive information on the activities. Several part-
success. The COW agreed to bilateral consultations, chaired byners, including JAPAN, GERMANY, SWEDEN and FRANCE,
Italy, on Rules 22 (1) and 31. Informal consultations were agreegdtr@ssed concentration of efforts on the national and local levels
on Rule 47 (1). based on national priorities. CANADA and the EU highlighted the
REVIEW OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CONVEN- role of NGOs and local populations in combating desertification.
TION: Executive Secretary Diallo introduced document ICCD/ The NETHERLANDS stressed that NAPs are an expression of
COP(2)/5 on Review of the Implementation of the Convention, di§gipient countries’ priorities to combat desertification, an instru-
of its Institutional Arrangements, Including Support to Regional ment of policy integration, and a tool to direct and coordinate assis-
Programmes, which contains information on activities undertakétnce.
at national, regional and sub-regional levels. Diallo, supported by ARGENTINA, supported by CHINA and the US, said NAP
UZBEKISTAN, the RUSSIAN FEDERATION, SWEDEN and implementation should be Parties’ priority, but also should be inte-
ARMENIA, stressed the importance of elaborating a fifth annexgeated at the sub-regional and regional level, where experiences
the Convention and said informal consultations will be finalized and information should be shared. CHINA stressed the importance
once the countries concerned accede to Party status. Several paiRegional Action Programmes (RAPs) and Sub-Regional Action

a, *

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti® <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Changbo Bai <changbo.bai@gte.net>, Angela Churie <churie@I.kth.sex, Tiffan
Prather <tprather@iisd.org> and Lynn Wagner, Ph.D. <lynn@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.orgarsaginigeBditor is Langston James
"Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by Andrei Henry <ahenry@iisd.ca). Logistics by Molly Rosenman <mrosenmaa@ifsench language versign
by Mongi Gahoum <Mongi.Gadhoum@enb.intl.tn>.The Sustaining Donors Biitleinare the Netherlands Ministry for Development Cooperation, the Government of
Canada (through CIDA) and the United States (through USAID). General Support Buligsten during 1998 is provided by the United Kingdom Department|for

International Development (DFID), the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Dewé&lopmeration (BMZ), the
Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Swiss Office for Environment, Forests and Landscape, the European Community (2G4Xlistties of Environment ang
Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs arstrivof Environment of Finland, the
Government of Sweden, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and theMhmsEyvironment in Iceland]
TheBulletincan be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. [ISD can be contactkat kyréer@@iisd.ca> and a
161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opinions expres&edtim Kegotiations Bulletiare those of the authors and do ot
necessarily reflect the views of 1ISD and other funders. Excerpts froEeattle Negotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commercial publications only and only with
appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managingdiditoc. Egesions of thBulletinare sent to
e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite inteigave®ve Dakar (c)1998 The Living
Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on Barth Negotiations Bulletirsend e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Earth Negotiations Bulletin
Thursday, 3 December 1998 Ty ... Vol. 4 No. 120 Page 2

Programmes (SRAPS) in elaborating NAPs and said considerafiattRKMENISTAN discussed his country's local experience in

should be given to Parties that are not in an Annex. ECUADORwater conservation. ICELAND noted national efforts to increase

requested assistance based on a bottom-up approach. PAKISTA®NI fertility and the related impact on climate change.

called for the establishment of a trust fund for desertification. TANZANIA proposed identifying threats to traditional knowl-
BURKINA FASO said the understanding of partnership will edge, such as modern technology, population growth, marginaliza-

remain problematic as long as donors continue to put their assigion of women, poverty, bio-invasions and climate change.

tance in the framework of traditional assistance to countries. ThRBRAZIL noted the difficulty of applying traditional knowledge

UK stressed the need to ensure that the concerns of desertificatidren dealing with an economic situation that is driven at market

expressed here are adequately reflected in bilateral and multilatgsebd. WMO called attention to external and internal pressures on

discussions on priorities for assistance. The US said any reviewtlod use of traditional techniques and to the method of transferring

implementation and determination of the need for additional instraditional knowledge as old languages disappear. NIUE said cash

tutional structures internal to the Convention must include a reviemups, which many donors emphasize, degrade the land and

of activities of all existing institutions internal and external to thestressed the need for sustainable crops. SENEGAL and CHAD

Convention. noted that wars and civil strife cause irreparable damage. CILSS

coumITTEE onsciENCE D TECHNoLOGY _ UESIIEe e i e
The CST’s discussion on traditional knowledge was chairedt%¥ education abbut trad}tional knowledae. TANZANIA. JAPAN
CST Vice-Chair Brown (UK) during the morning and CST Chair dge. . el !
Jabbari (Iran) during the afternoon. The Secretariat introduced t 3 US and _the U'.( encouraged coordination with other Rio
Synopsis of Reports on Traditional Knowledge (ICCD/COP(2)/ processes, including the CBD and Intergovernmental Forum on

CST/5), which summarizes contributions from 12 Parties and 5 Forests (IFF), that are con5|d_er|r_19 traditional knowledge.
obSErVvers. SWEDEN stressed communication at local levels and strength-

. . ening networks. The UK suggested considering linkages between
BEF&W@%&E?;Q;”?Z%&é%ﬁ&i’eiﬁgmﬁzsggg dErﬁgge%aditional knowledge and the UNEP-led survey of networks. The

' i ki houl he high iorities of CST.
technology. The FAO said they form a continuum. MOROCCO S said networking should be among the highest priorities of CS

stressed the synergies in combining traditional and modern tech- Delegates closed the afternoon with a discussion of whether to

. . reate amd hocgroup and what its composition and mandate
nologies. FINLAND and SPAIN suggested using modern techndi-
ogies and scientific research to improve traditional knowledge. would be. EGYPT, BRAZIL, KENYA, MAURITANIA, SUDAN,

ENEGAL and others supported a panel to carry forward projects

CENESTA (Center for Ecodevelopment Studies and Appllcat|ori1 entified during the discussion, including inventories of tradi-

speaking on behalf of the NGO Working Group on the CST, i &al practices, identifying existing reports and outlining work

pointed out traditional knowledge's prominence in the planning ‘%‘?ne in similar conventions. ITALY, CANADA, TURKEY and

implementation of NAPs, the need for synergy of local knowled %15%5 stressed the need for clear terms of reference for such a
;)r/%tlec:gzlaenxdprgr(t)gern science, and the partnership between SC|egroup. The UK, SWITZERLAND, FRANCE, GERMANY, the

gwlzz%%% no?gd thﬁ i_mplo rta;ce qf Isocio—cultural' s:]ructures. dwas the best place to accomplish the work and questioned whether
said technical and social aspects are inherent to tradly ¢ he work identified was necessary. They supported identi-

tional knowledge. ITALY drew attention to local socio-economic ing ways to increase access to information and networks to assist

circu_mstances th_at traditional knowl_edge is based on. Propos_al lementation of NAPs. The Chair asked for consultations to take
specific areas or issues to consider included mountain ter”tor'eBIace on possible terms of reference

(KYRGYSTAN) and energy alternatives (SWITZERLAND).
NORWAY and ITALY stressed women's unique role in promotingN THE CORRIDORS

traditional knowledge related to desertification and suggested Some delegates speculated on the possibilities for other reasons
addressing gender issues in NAPs. CILSS, supported by otherdpr G-77/China’s request to postpone Wednesday afternoon’s
suggested identifying how to make traditional knowledge more informal consultation on the budget and the possible implications
effective and efficient. for the definition of a medium-term strategy for the Secretariat.

A number of speakers, including the UN University, UNDP, Several G-77/China delegates expounded on their Chair’s call for
WMO, the Southern African Development Community (SADC),time to prepare as a group, given the late receipt of documents, and
the International Court for the Environment, and the Internation& honor an already scheduled meeting. They said that time to
Crop Research Institute for the Semi-Arid Tropics highlighted review the documents will facilitate discussion of the issue.
findings from related reports, projects or technologies. The Secre-

tariat highlighted an upcoming report in which consultants will THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

evaluate traditional knowledge in certain sub-regions, describing COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE: The COW is expected to
the techniques and noting the extent to which they are transferemlget at 9:30 am to continue the rev.iew of implementation of the

WMO suggested developing a list of available publications. TheC ; : ; -

; onvention and consider the designation of a Permanent Secre-
NETHERLANDS noted the lack of impact assessments of local,_ . - L : :
techniques. The GEF discussed efforts of its Scientific and Tecf%amat and arrangements for its functioning. A dialogue with NGOs

: . o : 0eheduled for the afternoon.
:gg:jcea}sllAdwsory Panel (STAP) on scientific and technological COMMITTEE ON SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY: The

CST is scheduled to conclude its work during morning and after-

TUNISIA reiterated that each country could record their tech:- : S . .
niques and submit them to the Secretariat. PERU and IRAN hi%oon sessions. Draft decisions on its agenda items are expected to

. T iy e available during the morning.
lighted their rich histories of traditional knowledge. CHINA note € available during the morning
national institutional arrangements to promote traditional knowl-
edge and other aspects in dealing with desertification problems.



